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AO 106 (04/10) Application for a Search Warrant

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the
Eastern District of Washington

In the Matter of the Search of
(Briefly describe the property to be searched
or identify the person by name and address)

538 Riverview Blvd. #3, Clarkston, WA

)
)
)
)
)
)

Case No.

()7

£..--- I/-;) D ?

APPLICATION FOR SEARCH WARRANT
I, a federal law enforcement officer or attorney for the government, request a search warrant and state under
penalty of perjury that I have reason to believe that there is now concealed on the following person or prpperty
(identify the person or describe property to be searched and give its location): See Attachment A, which is
incorporated herein by reference,
located in the EASTERN District of WASHINGTON, there is now concealed (identify the person or describe
property to be seized) See Attachment B, which is incorporated herein by reference.
The basis for the search under Fed. R. Crim. P. 41(c) is (check one or more):

JO evidence of a crime;
o contraband, fruits of crime, or other items illegally possessed;
o property designed for use, intended for use, or used in committing a crime;
o a person to be arrested or a person who is unlawfully restrained.
The search is related to a violation of:
Code Section
26 U.S.C. § 5681(f);
26 U.S.C. § 5845(a)(8), (f)(1)(A)

Offense Description
Manufacturing an Unregistered Firearm

The application is based on these facts:

JO Continued on attached sheet.
o

Delayed notice of days (give exact ending date if more than 30 days:) is requested under 18 U.S.C. §
3103a, the basis of which is set forth on the attached sheet.
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Applicant's signature
Leland C. McEuen, Special Agent
Applicant's printed name and title
Sworn to before me and signed in my presence.
Date:
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City and state: Spokane, Washington
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Judge's signature
Cynthia Imbrogno, United States Magistrate Judge
Printed name and title
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AUSA Assigned: RES
RE:

538 Riverview Blvd. #3, Clarkston, WA 99403

AFFIDAVIT
STATE OF WASlllNGTON
County of Spokane

)
:ss
)

Leland C. McEuen, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and states:
1.

I am a Special Agent Bomb Technician ("SABT") with the Federal Bureau

of Investigation (FBI), and have been so employed for approximately eleven years.
I am responsible for conducting federal and international investigations relating to
crimes involving the use (18 U.S.C. § 2332a,(a), (c)(2)(A)), possession and
making (26 U.S.C. § 5861(d), (f)) and threatened use (18 U.S.C. § 1038 (a)) ofa
destructive device (bomb). I am currently assigned to the Spokane Resident
Agency of the FBI. Prior to this employment I was employed as a Police Officer
for the City of San Diego, for ten years. I have additional training and duties as a
Weapons of Mass Destruction Coordinator. I have been a certified FBI SABT
since November 29,2002. As a SABT, I have participated in bombing
investigations in the United States and internationally. I have completed a 90 day
deploYment to Iraq where I conducted multiple post blast investigations.
Additionally, I am a post blast investigations instructor and have taught numerous
training classes, including classes relating to explosive and lED recognition, large
vehicle bomb investigations, and large vehicle bomb countermeasures. I have also
Affidavit of Leland C. McEuen
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had additional training in the investigations of crimes involving a computer and
have investigated computer crimes for the FBI for ten years, having completed
many investigations resulting in convictions for improper use of a computer,
specifically, possession, transfer and production of child pornography.!
2.

The purpose of this application is to set forth sufficient factual support for

the issuance of warrants to search the following locations and vehicles,
(specifically provided with each individual search warrant):
a.

Brice's residence.

b.

Brice's place of employment (father's residence/business.)

c.

Brice's vehicle.

d.

Brice's girlfriend's vehicle.

and to seize items listed in Attachment B, which is also incorporated herein by this
reference, as evidence and/or instrumentalities of a violation seize evidence,
contraband, and property used to commit a crime more particularly described in
Attachment B, concerning violations of 18 U.S.C. § 2332a(a), (c)(2)(A), 26 U.S.C.
§ 5861(d), (f), and 18 U.S.C. § 1038(a), which make it a crime to manufacture,
use, possess or threaten to use an unregistered destructive device.

Although this investigation does not involve offenses related to child
pornography, through my training and experience in investigating the use of
computers in child pornography cases, I have learned how electronic data can be
received, stored, transferred, and/or hidden in electronic media storage devices,
such as computers, thumb drives, hard drives, scan disks, flash memory media,
CD/DVD, video recorders, camera, X-Box game consuls, smart phones, Ipad.
1
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3.

The facts and opinions set forth on this Affidavit have been derived from

my above-described training and experience, as well as my personal participation
in this investigation and from information provided to me by FBI agents /
employees and from state and local law enforcement personnel. Based upon, in
part, my investigation of this matter and on the expertise of other law enforcement
investigations and cases, there is probable cause to believe that evidence of a
violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2332a(a), (c)(2)(A), 26 U.S.C. § 5861(d), (f), and
18 U.S.C. § 1038(a), involving the manufacturing, use, possess or threaten to use
of an unregistered destructive device will be found at the SUBJECT PREMISES.
Because this affidavit is being submitted for the limited purpose of securing a
search warrant, I have not included each and every fact known to me concerning
this investigation. I have set forth facts that I believe are necessary to establish
probable cause to believe that evidence of violations of 18 U.S.C. § 2332a(a),
(c)(2)(A), 26 U.S.C. § 5861(d), (f), and 18 U.S.C. § 1038(a) is presently located at
the SUBJECT PREMISES.
SUMMARY OF INVESTIGATION

4.

Detonation of lED: As set forth in detail below, on April 18, 2010, an

Improvised Explosive Device (lED) was detonated near Highway 193 west of
milepost three2 • Joseph Brice and Alyssa Pittman were present. Brice was
The original Whitman County Sheriff dispatch incident report stated the
explosive incident occurred near Mile Post # I, however Whitman County Sheriff
Deputies confirmed the post blast investigation was in fact near Mile Post #3.
2
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severely injured as a result of the blast, suffering serious wounds to his lower
extremities. Later, Brice admitted to making and detonating the IED, which
consisted of the improvised explosives Triacetone Triperoxide (TATP), Acetone
Peroxide Ammonium Nitrate (APAN) and Ammonium Nitrate Fuel Oil (ANFO).
5.

YouTube Videos: The free and publically available internet video sharing

service YouTube enables users to create and maintain personalized channels upon
which subscribers can post self-created and other content. Subscribers can also
post messages and comments. During December 2010, the "StrengthofAllah"
YouTube channel (which is also the moniker of the user that created and used that
channel) was used to post videos that depicted the use of explosives. Some of
these videos contained the embedded logo of the AI-Tawhid Wal Jihad (AI-Qa'ida
in Iraq) and a jihad chant soundtrack, known as Nashid. I reviewed the video files
and saw that two of them depicted the use of explosives in the Clarkston,
Washington vicinity, a location within the Eastern District of Washington. Two of
the explosives videos were titled nAP AN", which I know based on my training and
experience, to be Acetone Peroxide Ammonium Nitrate, an improvised explosive,
and one of the components in the aforementioned IED that injured Brice during
April 18, 2010. Visual examination revealed these two videos were made at the
same location where Joseph Brice was involved in an explosives accident. A third
video depicted the use of explosives to blow up a residence ihan unknown
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location, possibly outside the United States. The fourth and fifth videos presented
on the StrengthofAllah YouTube channel contained "martyr" content that
encouraged and celebrated jihad against the United States3 • The Internet Protocol
(IP) address used to create and access the StrengthofAllah YouTube channel was
traced to the Internet account subscribed to residt;nce of Joseph Brice.
TECHNICAL TERMS
6.

Based on my training and experience, I use the following technical terms to

convey the following meanings:
a.

IP Address: The Internet Protocol address (or simply "IP address") is

a unique numeric address used by computers on the Internet. An IP address
looks like a series of four numbers, each in the range 0-255, separated by
periods (e.g., 121.56.97.178). Every computer attached to the Internet
computer must be assigned an IP address so that Internet traffic sent from
and directed to that computer may be directed properly from its source to its
destination. Most Internet service providers control a range of IP addresses.
Some computers have static-that is, long-term-IP addresses, while other
computers have dynamic-that is, frequently changed-IP addresses.

3 The third, fourth, and fifth videos posted to the StrengthofAllah YouTube
channel were most likely created by others and reposted to the Strength ofAllah
channel. It is unknown whether the videos were edited in any way prior to being
posted or reposted to the StrengthofAllah channel.
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b.

Internet: The Internet is a global network of computers and other

electronic devices that communicate with each other. Due to the structure
of the Internet, connections between devices on the Internet often cross state
and international borders, even when the devices communicating with each
other are in the same state.
c.

Storage medium: A storage medium is any physical object upon

which computer data can be recorded. Examples include hard disks, floppy
disks, flash memory, CD-ROMs, and several other types of magnetic or
optical media not listed here.
COMPUTERS, ELECTRONIC STORAGE, AND FORENSIC ANALYSIS

7.

As described above and in Attachment B, this application seeks permission

to search for records that might be found on the SUBJECT PREMISES, in
whatever form they are found. One form in which the records might be found is
data stored on a computer's hard drive or other storage media. Thus, the warrant
applied for would authorize the seizure of electronic storage media or, potentially,
the copying of electronically stored information, all under Rule 41 (e)(2)(B).
8.

Probable cause. I submit that if a computer or storage medium is found on

the SUBJECT PREMISES, there is probable cause to believe those records will be
stored on that computer or storage medium, for at least the following reasons:
a.

Based on my knowledge, training, and experience, I know that
computer files or remnants of such files can be recovered months or
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even years after they have been downloaded onto a storage medium,
deleted, or viewed via the Internet. Electronic files downloaded to a
storage medium can be stored for years at little or no cost. Even
when files have been deleted, they can be recovered months or years
later using forensic tools. This is so because when a person "deletes"
a file on a computer, the data contained in the file does not actually
disappear; rather, that data remains on the storage medium until it is
overwritten by new data.
b.

Therefore, deleted files, or remnants of deleted files, may reside in
free space or slack space-that is, in space on the storage medium that
is not currently being used by an active file-for long periods of time
before they are overwritten. In addition, a computer's operating
system may also keep a record of deleted data in a "swap" or
"recovery" file.

c.

Wholly apart from user-generated files, computer storage media-in
particular, computers' internal hard drives-contain electronic evidence
of how a computer has been used, what it has been used for, and who
has used it. To give a few examples, this forensic evidence can take
the form of operating system configurations, artifacts from operating
system or application operation, file system data structures, and
virtual memory "swap" or paging files. Computer users typically do
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not erase or delete this evidence, because special software is typically
required for that task. However, it is technically possible to delete
this information.
d.

Similarly, files that have been viewed via the Internet are sometimes
automatically downloaded into a temporary Internet directory or
"cache."

e.

One of the SUBJECT PREMISES in this affidavit is operating as a
business. Based on actual inspection of other evidence related to this
investigation, I am aware that computer equipment was used to
generate, store, and communicate with others in the furtherance of the
manufacturing a destructive device crime. There is reason to believe
that there is a computer system currently located on the SUBJECT
PREMISES.

9.

Forensic evidence. As further described in Attachment B, this application

seeks permission to locate not only computer files that might serve as direct
evidence of the crimes described on the warrant, but also for forensic electronic
evidence that establishes how computers were used, the purpose of their use, who
used them, and when. There is probable cause to believe that this forensic
electronic evidence will be on any computer in the SUBJECT PREMISES
because:
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a.

Data on the storage medium can provide evidence of a file that was
once on the storage medium but has since been deleted or edited, or
of a deleted portion of a file (such as a paragraph that has been
deleted from a word processing file). Virtual memory paging systems
can leave traces of information on the storage medium that show what
tasks and processes were recently active. Web browsers, e-mail
programs, and chat programs store configuration information on the
storage medium that can reveal information such as online nicknames
and passwords. Operating systems can record additional information,
such as the attachment of peripherals, the attachment of USB flash
storage devices or other external storage media, and the times the
computer was in use. Computer file systems can record information
about the dates files were created and the sequence in which they
were created.

b.

Forensic evidence on a computer or storage medium can also indicate
who has used or controlled the computer or storage medium. This
"user attribution" evidence is analogous to the search for "indicia of
occupancy" while executing a search warrant at a residence. For
example, registry information, configuration files, user profiles,
e-mail, e-mail address books, "chat," instant messaging logs,
photographs, the presence or absence of malware, and
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correspondence (and the data associated with the foregoing, such as
file creation and last-accessed dates) may be evidence of who used or
controlled the computer or storage medium at a relevant time.
c.

A person with appropriate familiarity with how a computer works
can, after examining this forensic evidence in its proper context, draw
conclusions about how computers were used, the purpose of their use,
who used them, and when.

d.

The process of identifying the exact files, blocks, registry entries,
logs, or other forms of forensic evidence on a storage medium that are
necessary to draw an accurate conclusion is a dynamic process.
While it is possible to specify in advance the records to be sought,
computer evidence is not always data that can be merely reviewed by
a review team and passed along to investigators. Whether data stored
on a computer is evidence may depend on other information stored on
the computer and the application of knowledge about how a computer
behaves. Therefore, contextual information necessary to understand
other evidence also falls within the scope of the warrant.

e.

Further, in finding evidence of how a computer was used, the purpose
of its use, who used it, and when, sometimes it is necessary to
establish that a particular thing is not present on a storage medium.
For example, the presence or absence of counter-forensic programs or
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anti-virus programs (and associated data) may be relevant to
establishing the user's intent.
f.

I know that when an individual uses a computer to research and
communicate the manufacturing of a destructive device over the
Internet, the individual's computer will generally serve both as an
instrumentality for committing the crime, and also as a storage
medium for evidence of the crime. The computer is an
instrumentality of the crime because it is used as a means of
committing the criminal offense. The computer is also likely to be a
storage medium for evidence of crime. From my training and
experience, I believe that a computer used to commit a crime of this
type may contain: data that is evidence of how the computer was
used; data that was sent or received; notes as to how the criminal
conduct was achieved; records of Internet discussions about the
crime; and other records that indicate the nature of the offense.

10.

Necessity of seizing or copying entire computers or storage media. In

most cases, a thorough search of a premises for information that might be stored
on storage media often requires agents to seize physical storage media and later
review the media consistent with the warrant. In lieu of removing storage media
from the premises, it is sometimes possible to make an image copy of storage
media. Generally speaking, imaging is the taking of a complete electronic picture
Affidavit of Leland C. McEuen
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of the computer's data, including all hidden sectors and deleted files. Either
seizure or imaging is often necessary to ensure the accuracy and completeness of
data recorded on the storage media, and to prevent the loss of the data either from
accidental or intentional destruction. This is true because of the following:
11.

The time required for an examination. As noted above, not all evidence

takes the form of documents and files that can be easily viewed on site. Analyzing
evidence of how a computer has been used, what it has been used for, and who has
used it requires considerable time, and taking that much time on premises could be
unreasonable. As explained above, because the warrant calls for forensic
electronic evidence, it is exceedingly likely that it will be necessary to thoroughly
examine storage media to obtain evidence. Storage media can store a large
volume of information. Reviewing that information for things described in the
warrant can take weeks or months, depending on the volume of data stored, and
would be impractical and invasive to attempt on-site.
a.

Computers can be configured in several different ways, featuring a
variety of different operating systems, application software, and
configurations. Therefore, searching them sometimes requires tools
or knowledge that might not be present on the search site. The vast
array of computer hardware and software available makes it difficult
to know before a search what tools or knowledge will be required to
analyze the system and its data on the Premises. However, taking the
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storage media off-site and reviewing it in a controlled environment
will allow its examination with the proper tools and knowledge.
12.

Variety of forms of electronic media. Records sought under this warrant

could be stored in a variety of storage media formats that may require off-site
reviewing with specialized forensic tools.
13.

Nature of examination. Based on the foregoing, and consistent with Rule

41 (e)(2)(B), when officers executing the warrant conclude that it would be
impractical to review the media on-site, the warrant I am applying for would
permit officers either to seize or to image-copy storage media that reasonably
appear to contain some or all of the evidence described in the warrant, and then
later examine the seized storage media or image copies consistent with the
warrant. The examination may require searching authorities to employ techniques,
including but not limited to computer-assisted scans of the entire medium, that
might expose many parts of a hard drive to human inspection in order to determine
whether it is evidence described by the warrant.
14.

Because several people share the business SUBJECT PREMISES as a

residence, it is possible that the SUBJECT PREMISES will contain computers that
are predominantly used, and perhaps owned, by persons who are not suspected of
a crime. If agents conducting the search nonetheless determine that it is possible
that the things described in this warrant could be found on any of those computers
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or storage media, the warrant applied for would permit the seizure and review of
those items as well.
15.

I recognize that Jeffrey Brices' company, Valley Dental Laboratory, which

is operated out of the family residence at 1748 Westwood Dr., Clarkston, WA, at
which Joseph Brice works and appears to have accessed the Internet locations
specific to this investigation, is a functioning company with a few employees, and
that a seizure of the Company's computers may have the unintended effect of
limiting the Company's ability to conduct its legitimate business. As with any
search warrant, I expect that agents executing this warrant will execute the warrant
reasonably and will avoid causing unnecessary inconvenience to the Company, its
employees, and its customers. Typically, these steps include an incremental
approach that might proceed as follows:
a.

Upon arriving at the business SUBJECT PREMISES, the agents
would attempt to identify a system administrator of the network (or
other knowledgeable employee) who would be willing to assist law
enforcement by identifying, copying, and printing out paper and
electronic copies of the things described in the warrant. The
assistance of such an employee might allow agents to place less of a
burden on the Company than would otherwise be necessary.

b.

If the employees choose not to assist the agents, the agents decide that
none are trustworthy, or for some other reason the agents cannot
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execute the warrant successfully without themselves examining the
Company's computers, the agents would attempt to locate the things
described in the warrant, and would attempt to make electronic copies
of those things. This analysis would focus on things that may contain
the evidence and information of the violations under investigation. In
doing this, the agents might be able to copy only those things that are
evidence of the offenses described herein, and provide only those
things to the case agent. Circumstances might also require the agents
to attempt to create an electronic "image" of those parts of the
computer that are likely to store the things described in the warrant.
The agents or qualified computer experts will then conduct an off-site
search for the things described in the warrant from the "mirror image"
copy at a later date. If the agents successfully image the Company's
computers, the agents will not conduct any additional search or
seizure of the Company's computers.
c.

If imaging proves impractical, or even impossible for technical
reasons, then the agents would seize those components of the
Company's computer system that the agents believe must be seized to
permit the agents to locate the things described in the warrant at an
off-site location. The seized components would be removed from the
SUBJECT PREMISES. If employees of the Company so request, the
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agents will, to the extent practicable, attempt to provide the
employees with copies of data that may be necessary or important to
the continuing function of the Company's legitimate business. If,
after inspecting the computers, it is determined that some or all of this
equipment is no longer necessary to retrieve and preserve the
evidence, the government will return it within a reasonable time.
16.

Forfeiture. There is also probable cause to believe that the property to be

seized would, in the event of conviction, be subject to forfeiture
PERTINENT FEDERAL CRIMINAL STATUTES

17.

This investigation concerns violations of26 U.S.C. § 586l(d), (f), 18 U.S.C.

§ 2332a(a), (c)(2)(A), and 18 U.S.C. § 1038(a), in aggregate relating to the
possession, manufacture" use and threatened use of a destructive device.
18.

26 U.S.C. § 5861 (d), (f), prohibits the manufacturing and possession of an

unregistered destructive device.
19.

18 U.S.C. § 2332a(a), (c)(2)(A), prohibits the use ofa weapon of mass

destruction as defined by section 921 (destructive device "any explosive bomb").
20.

18 U.S.C. § 1038(a), prohibits threats and/or hoax devices and information

where such information may reasonably be believed and where such information
indicates that an activity has taken, is taking, or will take place.
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PROBABLE CAUSE

21.

Whitman County Sheriffs Office Deputy Brian Keller r~ported, in incident

report number 10-S1038 that, on April 18, 2010, at approximately 4:16 p.m.,
Alyssa Pittman called into to law enforcement that there was a firearms accident
on SR193 at approximately Mile Post 14• At the scene, Pittman reported that she
was the girlfriend of Joseph Brice. Brice reported that he filled a paint can with
Tannerite powder and wrapped the can with duct tape. Brice was at the scene
being treated by paramedics for injuries to both legs. Brice was heard stating,
"What have I done to myself." Brice stated there were no more explosives and he
was just trying to get rid of what he had. Deputy Keller collected the evidence at
the scene and impounded it at the station. The vehicle at the scene was Pittman's
Silver 2000 VW Golf, bearing Washington license 632illC, YIN
WVWDH21J6YW6298, registered to Debra Pittman, which was searched, but

nothing was taken.
22.

Deputy Keller interviewed Pittman at the hospital. Pittman stated Brice and

she wanted to go shooting. According to Pittman, She picked up Brice in her car
at his house and Brice had some targets made of TanneriteS which they were

4 The original Whitman County Sheriff dispatch incident report stated the
explosive incident occurred near Mile Post # 1, however Whitman County Sheriff
Deputies confirmed the post blast investigation was in fact near Mile Post #3 as
identified by SABT McEuen.

5

Tannerite is a shock sensitive explosive used in exploding firearm targets.
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going to shoot. Pittman explained that Brice had ordered the "Tannerite" over the
Internet. Pittman further told Deputy Keller that Brice placed a quart sized
aluminum can containing the explosives in her car, and they drove to the railroad
tracks, where she waited while Brice walked further and placed the explosive and
used a sparker as a fuse, lit it and it exploded as he was moving away. Pittman
said the explosive was not in a bucket. She said Brice likes to go shooting.
Pittman told Deputy Keller they were going to shoot the Tannerite, but she
couldn't explain why they didn't have any firearms with them at the time of the
explosion. Pittman then changed her account, and stated they were going to light
the Tannerite to detonate it. She admitted to initially reporting it was a firearms
accident, explaining she was scared and did not want to get into any trouble.
23.

Jeffrey Brice, the father of Joseph Brice, was also interviewed and stated

that Joseph likes to go shooting at the river (the location of the incident).
According to Jeffrey Brice, Joseph Brice told his father about exploding targets
that his friends owned.
24.

On August 14,2010, Deputy Keller spoke with Brice over the telephone. 6

Brice stated he made the lED out of a combination of ammonium nitrate fertilizer,
acetone peroxide, hydrogen peroxide and concrete bleach (a strong acid). 7 The
Due to the injuries Brice sustained during the explosion, Deputy Keller
was not able to interview Brice until approximately four months after the incident.
6

7Based on my training and experience, I know that this combination of
chemicals is used to make "TATP" explosives, and "APAN" explosives, both of
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lED weighed about 2.5 pounds. Brice stated that he used a refrigerator in the
process of making the explosives. Brice further stated he used a gun powder
charge to ignite the lED, and that he brought his girlfriend along to detonate it. In
this statement, Brice recalled lighting the fuse and concluded that something
caused it to ignite unexpectedly, almost instantly. Brice recalled noting that the
explosion of the lED severely injured him, and that his shirt and pants had been
blown off his person. He lost consciousness after getting into the ambulance, and
recalled waking up twelve days later at Harbor View Hospital.
25.

Brice stated he has always been good at chemistry and "likes doing things

like this." Brice explained that he bought the chemicals for the lED on the
Internet. Deputy Keller noted in his incident report that he (Deputy Keller) did not
think the Whitman County Sheriffs Office would go forward with submitting
criminal charges to the prosecutor because he (Deputy Keller) thought Brice had
learned his lesson the hard way.
26.

In January 2011, investigators learned that during December 2010, the

StrengthofAllah Y ouTube channel (which is also the moniker of the user that
created and used that channel) was being used to post the aforementioned five
videos, which are described in more detail below. The Y ouTube profile for the
StrengthofAllah user stated the user had joined the Y ouTube service on December
28, 2010, was 20 years old, and resided in the United States.
which have no known legal commercial use.
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27.

The first video, posted by StrengthofAllah on January 10,2011, was titled,

"50 Kg ANFO," with the comment, "50 Kilograms ANFO inside a small house
Praise be to Allah (SWT)." The video began with a logo known to be associated
with AI-Tawhid Wal Jihad (AI-Qa'ida in Iraq) and a Nashid chant soundtrack. The
video then showed a small, dark-red house along a paved street in a heavily treed
location. The resultant explosion and shockwave destroyed the house and sent
debris across the road before knocking the camera down. The audio and video
appeared to indicate the use of explosives to destroy the house. Based on my
training and experience, I know that "ANFO" is an acronym for Ammonium
Nitrate Fuel Oil, explosives and that the blast depicted in the video appeared to be
consistent with the use of a large quantity (approximately 50 pounds or so) of such
high-explosives.
28.

The second and third videos titled, ".5 kg APAN" and".3KG APAN" were

posted by StrengthofAllah on December 28,2010. Each of the videos began with
a logo for AI-Tawhid Wal Jihad (AI-Qa'ida in Iraq) and a Nashid chant
soundtrack, followed by a small explosion on the ground. The location in both
videos was the same, near a dirt access road along a river with rolling hills in the
background. There were wooden fence posts along the road and debris. The
author's comment for the video titled ".3KG APAN" read, "All.praise due to Allah
under all conditions. Sorry about the camera work, was too close had to step back
and caused bad filming." The "APAN" videos depicted explosions of less
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magnitude than the first video of the 50 pound charge. Based on my training and
experience, the blast appeared to be consistent with the use of high-explosives,
which was consistent with the videos' title. Based on my training and experience,
I know that APAN is an acronYm for the Acetone Peroxide Ammonium Nitrate
explosives, which is a sensitive improvised (homemade), and unstable high
explosive.
29.

The fourth and fifth videos were titled "shaheedan" and "zmuzh ghanian,"

and were posted by the user StrengthofAllah on December 29,2010. Each of the
videos began with a logo, comprising a map of Afghanistan with two swords and
an image of the Koran. The Arabic inscription below the logo was translated to
mean "the righteous religion" by FBI Language Analyst Ghassan Hajjar. The
same logo was imposed in the upper left comer of the screen throughout the
duration of the videos. Both videos depicted still photographs ofmujahedeen and
martYrs. A Nashid chant soundtrack was looped for the duration of the video. The
author's comment for the video titled "Shaheedan" read "For our martyrs."
30.

As of January 13,2011, the YouTube channel, StrengthofAllah, and

associated videos were no longer available. When I attempted to again access the
channel, a YouTube generated message stated, "This channel is no longer
available because the user closed their account."
31.

On January 14,2011, I contacted Sergeant Chris Chapman, Whitman

County Sheriffs Office, to review the aforementioned incident report 10-SI038,
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detailing the April 18, 2010, IED explosion that injured Brice. Sergeant Chapman
and I reviewed the crime scene photographs and compared the location with the
previously described second and third videos depicting AP AN explosions. Based
on visual comparison, the crime scene location appeared to be the same as the

APAN videos posted on the StrengthofAllah YouTube channel. I was also able to
specifically identify the ground debris, ground color, wood posts, background and
dirt road depicted in both the StrengthofAllah videos and the crime scene
photographs.
32.

Based on my training and experience, I know that a person who chats

online, posts videos online, will often have content of their interests, in this case:
explosives, lED manufacturing, online research for chemical purchases in their
electronic service provider data and computer. Therefore, I continued the
investigation through the execution of search warrants, grand jury subpoenas, and
pen register orders on email accounts, cellular telephone service, and IP addresses
believed to be associated with Joseph Brice.
33.

On February 16,2011, I received a response from Google regarding a

federal search warrant for the records Google had regarding the e-mail account
joeybrice55@gmail.com, rzaforshiza@gmail.com and
strengthofallah@gmail.com. The following is a summary of those results:
Main Account:
Name: Joey Brice
e-mail: joeybrice55@gmail.com
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Services: Android, Calendar, Checkout, Docs, Gmail, Grandcentral, Personalized
homepage, Spreadsheets, Talk, Toolbar, Transliteration, Youtube.
Secondary e-mail: joey_brice@hotmail.com
Created on: 2005/06/05 3:19:40 UTC
Other Usemames: joey_brice@hotmail.com
Date/Time of use:
2011/01/18 19:16:42 UTC LP: 74.112.57.173
2011/01/16 19:35:13 UTC LP: 24.117.1.73
Secondary Account:
Name: john doe
e-mail: rzaforshiza@gmail.com
Services: Gmail, Personalized homepage, Talk
Secondary e-Mail: joeybrice55@gmail.com
Created on: 2010/12/14 20:40:31 UTC IP 24.117.1.73
Secondary Account:
Name: yusuf abdel
e-Mail: strengthofallah@gmail.com
Services: Gmail, Talk
Secondary e-Mail: joey_brice@hotmail.com
Created on: 2010/12/28 18:56:45 UTC IP 24.117.1.73
Secondary Account:
Name: Joey Brice
E-Mail: joeybrice55@gmail.com
Services: Android, Calendar, Checkout, Docs, Gmail, Grandcentral, Personalized
homepage, Spreadsheets, Talk, Toolbar, Transliteration, Youtube
Secondary e-Mail: joey_brice@hotmail.com
Created on: 2005/06/08 3:19:40 UTC IP 24.117.1.222
Other Usemames: joey_brice@hotmail.com
34.

As of January 2011, the Google usage logs showed strengthofallah@gmail

was accessed by the IP address 24.117.1.73 and 74.112.57.173. As of January
2011, the IP usage logs showedjoeybrice55@gmail.com was using the IP address
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24.117.1.73 and 24.112.57.173. The same IP addresses (24.117.1.73) were
associated with all the e-mail addresses. The YouTube username "Chslosers" was
registered with the e-mail accountjoeybrice55@gmail.com and in January 2011,
used the IP address 24.117.1.73. The YouTube username Newspeakgeneration
was registered with the e-mail account strengthofallah@gmail.com on December
28,2010, again using the IP address 24.117.1.73. The YouTube username
TheRazaforshaza was registered with the e-mail accountrzaforshiza@gmail.com
on December 14, 2010, using the IP address 24.117.1.73. I searched ARIN (IP
address registry) and learned the following: IP address 24.117.1.73 is owned by
Cable One, Inc. 1314 N. Third St. First Floor, Phoenix, AZ 85004.
35.

On April 21, 2011, Cable One Inc., provided the following information:
Name on Account: Joe Brice
Phone No.: 509-552-0072
IP address as of 4/3/2011: 24.116.122.254
E-mail: joeybrice55@gmail.com
Install: 3/22/2011
Address: 538 Riverview Blv. #3, Clarkston, WA.

36.

On March 1,2011, an internet pen register and trap and trace order was

served upon Cable One for the address of 538 Riverview Blvd #3 Clarkston,

WA. On May 4,2011, FBI Special Agent (SA) Norma Loza reviewed the last
previous 30 days of the Pen Trap/Trace activity associated with IP address
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24.116.122.254, (supplied by Cable One in response to the order on 538
Riverview Blv. #3, Clarkston, WA, the residence of Joseph Brice.) SA Loza
observed contact between IP address 24.116.122.254 and 188.241.116.95 on the
following days; April 6, 7, 9, 15, 17, 18,20,22,23,24 and April 26 thru May 1,
2011. SA Loza directed her internet browser to IP address 188.241.116.95 and
determined it was a web site known as "Deen Al Haq". On this website, SA Loza
observed a web page that contained two crossed swords and two men whose faces
were obscured by scarves; one of the men was holding a rocket propelled grenade
launcher on his shoulder. The page also contained images of holy sites in Mecca.
SA Loza clicked on the "Join" button, and was informed that only registered users
can post messages. The page also provided criteria to register included a required
reference. SA Loza then clicked on the "Welcome" button and was directed to a
page with the words "Islamic Caliphate" written across what appeared to be a map
of the Middle East. Under the map was a photo of men wearing scarves over their
faces; some of these men were holding weapons. The caption stated, "Allah grants
a respite to the oppressor, but when he finally seizes him, he will not let him
escape." The second picture changes back and forth from a map of what appears
to be the Middle East to a picture of Osama Bin Laden. There was an "English
Section" button which SA Loza clicked. SA Loza then saw the following forums
listed; "General Discussion," "Jihad in Afghanistan and Pakistan," "Sharia," Islam
in the West," "Jihad News," and "Pictures and Videos." The page stated there
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· were 888 posts under the English section, but the posts were not observable to
those who had not registered, and were listed as, "Private."
37.

On March 1, 2011, a pen register and trap and trace order was served upon

Cable One for the Internet Service Account registered to the address of 1748
Westwood Dr., Clarkston, WA. On May 4, 2011, SA Nonna Loza reviewed the
last 30 days of the Pen Trap/Trace activity associated with IP address
24.117.126.20, (supplied by Cable One in response to the order on 1748
Westwood Dr., Clarkston, WA.) SA Loza observed contact between IP address
24.117.126.20 and 188.241.116.95 (the previously described "Deen Al Haq" web
site) on April 6, 2011, and April 11, 2011.
38.

On May 5, 2011, I reviewed the internet pen register trap and trace activity

for the Internet Service Account registered to 1748 Westwood Dr., Clarkston,
WA. On March 4, 2011, the IP assigned to the modem at that address was
24.117.1.73 and IP remained to be 24.117.1.73 until approximately March 21,
2011. As stated above, 24.117.1.73 was associated with most of Joseph Brice's
Internet accounts, as evidenced through registration, usage, or both.
39.

Based on my training and experience, I know that gmail.com accounts are

provided by Google, and that YouTube is a subsidiary of Google Inc.
Hotmail.com accounts are provided by the Microsoft corporation.
40.

Joey_brice@hotmail.com was located by FBI Intelligence Analyst Fitterer

as using the screen name "Joey", identified as a "super moderator" on The Young
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News Channel (YNC). The YNC is a public internet video sharing service that
caters to users that wish to post extreme pornographic and violent video content.
Users can also post messages to the YNC service. "Joey" posted on the YNC over
1,869 times, and identified himself as from Washington state. On July 23,2010,
"Joey" posted to a thread titled "Is this website illegal". On May 30,2010, "Joey"
posted to the thread, "Joey had an accident...talked to him Today Sunday May
30th." The posting stated, " Thanks everyone I've been in the hospital for a month
and a few days now and I am heading to a semi-rehab Tuesday to learn to stand
again...The explosive was about 8 lbs of fertilizer mixed with aluminum. The
charge that detonates the fertilizer was sparked early and went off as I was jogging
away. The force broke my right leg and many of the other wounds are from
shrapnel." On December 18,2010, "Joey" posted to a thread titled, "Suicide bomb
aftermath- 22 killed," attaching an image, depicting the aftermath of a suicide
bombing in Quetta, Pakistan, in which mutilated bodies were visible.
41.

On December 7, 2010, the YNC service contained a message thread titled:

"make bomb in kitchen of your mom Al Qaeda releases INSPIRE, an Jihadi
magazine." On this thread, "Joey" posted, "Exclusive interview with Abu Basir
Mujahideen 101 are a few of the featured articles .. .1 will try to find more links if
anybody cares to look through them. I got this link off a Jihad website but all the
other links for the other issues don't work." In this posting, "Joey" inserted a
hyperlink to the INSPIRE magazine internet address, which would enable the
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download of the magazine content. I am familiar with al-Qaeda linked INSPIRE
magazine, and knows that it frequently contains instructions and information on
how to make explosives, use them as destructive devices and weapons of mass
destruction, and provides guidance on how to place those devices in support of
violent jihad.
42.

On February 2,2011, a search warrant was served upon Google for the

account contents of StrengthofAllah YouTube channel. On March 14, 2011,
Google responded with the following information; The e-mail address associated
with the account was strengthofallah@gmail.com; as explained above,
strenghofallah@gmail.com was registered to Joey Brice. The usage logs, video
posts and IP address used to create the account was 24.117.1.73. The posted
videos included 50 Kg ANFO, Blessed Chechen Mujahedeen attacked by
pro-Russian Forces and Kadyrov, Shaheedan, Zmuzh Ghazian,.3 KG APAN and
.5 KG APAN. This content consisted of the same videos as described above, in
addition to other content. The user StrengthofAllah also posted the following
commentary on his YouTube channel:
a.

January 8, 2011, "community college would make me want to kill
myself as well. Anyway as long as it's one more dead American
kuffar, what difference does it make to me if sh~ is a democrat or
gop?" [I observed that the comment was posted to a video regarding
the firearm assault upon Congresswoman Giffards.]
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b.

January 10,2011, "I hate Jews."

c.

January 11,2011, "She was growing up to be a lying politician
anyways..am I supposed to feel bad? Better to drown a dog as a pup
instead of letting it grow into a pitbull." [I observed that the comment
was posted to a video regarding the firearm assault upon
Congresswoman Giffards.]

d.

January 12,2011, "you like bombs? Watch my videos."

e.

January 12,2011, "... Ifhe didn't have any weapon he could have just
as easily made explosives using household chemicals... "

43.

On February 2,2011, a search warrant was served upon Google for the

account contents ofrzaforshiza@gmail.com. On March 14,2011, Google
responded with the following noted information; rzaforshiza@gmail.com was used
to create the user Therzaforshiza on December 14,2010, using the IP address
24.117.1. 73 (the same IP address as Brice used above.) The following YouTube
posts by the user Therzaforshiza were noted:
a.

December 23,2010, "...you can buy tannerite and use the fertilizer as
you AN [I know that "AN" is an acronym for (Ammonium nitrate
oxidizer] and then you have to make AP [I know that "AP" is an
acronym for (Triacetonetriperoxide TATP explosives] ... creating
and explosive device like that is illegal but having them separate isn't
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really. I don't know how they segregate between AP being used as a
chemistry experiment and it being a bomb"
b.

December 27,2010, "... I've seen terribly worse in person. I use all
electronics and have more experience than you. I could RF a garage
opener in a heartbeat [Based on my training and experience, I believe
that "RF a garage opener" create a radio initiated explosive trigger].
Don't talk to me about a week ass 1OOg booster...You want to see
fucking explosion wound? Haha idiot, don't even know who the fuck
you are talking to."

c.

December 27,2010, ".. .1 have skin grafts on most of my lower
extremities and upper body form a methane bubble burst when we
were drilling out bores being readied for emulsified ANFO ... I was in
ICU for 12 days asleep and 3 months just getting on my feet. .. Want
to see photos?"

d.

December 27,2010, "NPED [I know that "NPED" is an acronym for
non-primary explosives detonator] can now be purchased in most
states legally through pyrotechnic dealers"

e.

December 27,2010, "I buy 40lb bulks straight from Maryland and
straight from the hopper. I get the first and last bag."

Affidavit of Leland C. McEuen
30 of 57
PI0505RC.RSE.wpd

http://www.intelwire.com

INTELWIRE.com

f.

December 28,2010, "40/c per lb. I buy form ex-EOD [I know that
"EOD: is an acronym for Explosives Ordinance Disposal] who still
has a running permit."

44.

TheRzaforshiza's YouTube videos were uploaded from IP 24.117.1.73 and

contained the two titles, 500g APAN Booster and Timothy McVeigh Oklahoma
City Bombing Dedication.
45.

Private messages from Chslosers (as explained above was registered from

the e-mail accountjoeybrice55@gmail.com) contained the following noted
messages:
a.

March 20, 2010, "The cord is just and electrical charge and correct
the only thing that detonates RDX aka Composition 4, is electricity. "
RDX stands for "Royal Dutch Explosive" which is used in military
explosives.

b.

April 4, 2010, "Do you keep AN prilled or powdered when doing
large apan dets such as the 1200g vs mountain..I've only used powder
mix and it works fine but I was just curious."

c.

April 14, 2010, "ya but you will need to make a booster of APAN
with a 12:88 ratio. But yea..ifyou are detonating a pound of anfo,
you will need about 50-100 grams of APAN..which is really easy to
make considering if you make a 100 gram booster all you need is 12
grams AP and 88 grams of evaporated AN..then you can make a
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19-5g AP cap and it will set it offjust fine. Search rzaforshiza that is
my other account you will see a 2 lb anfo charge."
d.

September 23,2010, "Salaam. 8 I respect your views and was
wondering if you know any decent forums with threads speaking of
the transition from knowledge to action? Assalamu Alaykum Wa
Rahmatullaahi wa barakato. ,,9 Although the actual recipient of this
private message is unknown, the Y ouTube username was
mohammadbanibaker. A search of the screen name on YouTube
revealed that the username had posted a video titled, "Adam Gadahn
The American Al qaeda 89" which showed Al Qaeda media
spokesman Adam Gadahn calling for individual violent jihad against
Western targets.

e.

February 3,2011, "Hey I got pulled over by fish and game, I had a
.380 pistol loaded so I got a loaded pistol wlo permit charge... "

46.

Based on the February 3,2011, posting referencing the pistol and other

possible charges, I obtained the citation and court documents from the Asotin
prosecutor's office, Case No C22139, C22140. On February 7, 2011, Joseph Brice
was convicte~ of possession of a loaded firearm without a permit, minor in

8

Language analyst Hajjar translated: Peace.

Language analyst Hajjar translated: Peace be upon you and God's
blessing and mercy upon you.
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possession of alcohol, possession of drug paraphernalia, and possession of
marijuana. The citation stated that Brice was driving a dark green Jeep
Cherokee bearing Washington license plate 507ZGZ.

47.

In response to a search warrant to Google Inc., for account content of

joeybrice55@gmail.com, Google responded with the following information:
a.

In an e-mail, dated August 19,2010, from Paypal.com to "Timothy
McVeighjoeybrice55@gmail.com, the shipping address was listed as
Timothy McVeigh, 1749 Westwood Ct., Lewiston, ID., Telephone
number (509) 552-0072, the purchase was for electronic access, so no
actual physical delivery was to occur.

b.

In an e-mail dated November 15, 2010, from Pat Malony to
joeybrice55@gmail.com, in response to "Joe Brice" asking, "Do the
firing systems come with a few starter cables or do I have to buy the
refills too?" Pat stated, "the Starter kit comes with 3 sets of igniter
clips, each has 5 clips for a total of 15 igniter clips. Refills are
available from our website. www.predatorpyro.com." Based on the
email, I went to the website www.predatorpyro.com on the Internet
and observed that the site sells the Predator firework initiator. The
Predator was described as an infrared transmitter system that can
ignite fireworks from up to 150 feet away. Based on the image it
appeared the system remotely ignited electric matches that were
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attached to the firework fuses. Based on my training and experience,
I know that electric matches can also be used to ignite explosives.
48.

The additional followingjoeybrice55@gmail.com e-mails were noted:
a.

On February 6,2009, Brice 10 complained to the Dubai (in the United
Arab Emirates) police that a website in their jurisdiction was
advertising false identification but not delivering after being paid.

b.

On February 16,2009, Brice ordered a false identification from
expressed@ymail.com.

c.

On September 14,2009, Brice ordered another false identification
from expressed@ymail.com.

d.

On January 29, 2010, Brice ordered two more false identifications.

e.

On Aug 19,2010, Brice received a notice from PayPal under the
name Timothy Mcveigh.

f.

On November 27,2010, Brice received a YouTube response to his
posting, using the name Chslosers, a comment on 6-cue wireless
consumer fireworks firing system.

"Brice" is used to represent the email account:
JOEYBRICE55@G.MAIL.COM was used. It is unknown if in fact whether
Joseph Brice actually made the posts. However, based upon my participation in
the investigation which included review of the context of the sent, received, and
saved emails from accounts believed to be used by Joseph Brice, I believe Joseph
Brice sent and/or received the emails referenced in this section. Therefore,
"Brice" is being used to indicate the suspected sender or receiver of this
referenced email throughout this section.
10
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g.

On November 30,2010, Brice received from The YNC Forum, "Dear
Yusuf, Thanks for registering at The YNC forum!" (Investigation
showed the name "yusuf abdel" was used to register the e-mail
account strengthofallah@gmai1.com as a secondary account to
joeybrice555@gmail.com.)

h.

Brice received a notice from Gmail to "John Doe
joeybrice55@gmai1.com Subject: Your Gmail address,
rzaforshiza@gmia1.com, has been created."

1.

On December 17, 2010, Brice received a notice that, "Nusantarean
has made a comment on your profile: how you convert to islam? And
when?" (Investigation showed Nusantarean posted on YouTube a
video containing footage of the terrorist attack upon the World Trade
Center buildings in New York on 9-11. On December 10,2010,
YouTube screen name Chslosers posted to this video, "Allahu
Akbar.")

J.

On January 7, 2011, Brice received a YouTube message that stated,
"Jihadislams has invited you to become friends on YouTube."

k.

A video file was sent fromjoeybrice55@gmail.com account to his
rzaforshiza@yahoo.com account titled, "Transforming a House Into
Firewood With 50 Kilo Dynamite.flv"
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1.

On January 21, 2011, Brice ordered another false identification from
expressed@ymail.com and requested the ill be sent to "Joe Brice
1748 Westwood Dr. Clarkston, WA 99403" He requested the ill in
the name Andrew Johnson, 6'1" 1821bs, born December 12, 1989.

49.

On February 22,2011, I went to the YouTube channel Newspeakgeneration

via Google cache and viewed the screen snapshot of the site as of February 20,
2011. There was a video title posted, "I found a FBI or ATF tracking device on
my vehicle! ReaL" It was uploaded by the user Newspeakgeneration on February
19,2011, along with the comment, "So recently there was a bomb scare at a MLK
day parade, the FBI has expanded their search to my area. For some reason they
have singled out myself. Email meatrzaforshiza@yahoo.com. " The user profile
listed the age as 32 and the join date as February 15,2011. In fact, based on my
participation in this investigation, I know that FBI agents had placed a GPS
tracker on Brice's dark green Jeep Cherokee (Washington license plant
number 507ZGZ) vehicle. Brice apparently discovered the tracker, turned the
device in to the Clarkston Police Department, and made a police report. I
obtained a copy of the police report, Incident number 11P00765, dated February
13,2011. In the report, Brice stated his telephone number was (509) 758-1971
and cell n~ber (509) 552-0072. Brice provided a home address of 538
Riverview Blv [sic] (no apartment number given) Clarkston, WA, and stated he
found the tracker under his dark green Jeep Cherokee, (Brice did not have his
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vehicle with him, could not provide the license plate for it, and stated the
.registration return does not list a registered owner).
50.

During the investigation, search warrants were served upon Inland Cellular

for account information and text messages from or to (509) 552-0072, the
telephone number that Joseph Brice had provided to the Clarkston Police
Department on (or about) February 13,2011. Inland Cellular responded and
among the information was the following noted text messages:
a.

. August 1,2009, from 509-552-0072 11 to 208-791-0455, "Heard you
were talking shit about my pipe bomb. Its sealed lets blow it up today
Response from 208-791-0455 to 509-552-0072, "yep"

b.

October 9,2009, from 509-552-0072 to 208-791-0455, "OK I have a
one and a half lb bomb and a suitcase. You down" Response from
208-791-0455 to 509-552-0072, "I can't turn that down."

c.

October 9,2009, from 509-552-0072 to 509-552-1591, "Want to go
light a bomb strapped in a suitcase after you get off' Response from
509-552-1591 to 509-552-0072, "Sure"

d.

January 22,2010, from 443-324-6122 to 509-552-0072, "No
problem! Just let me know what you want and I will give you a

11 Based on my participation in the investigation, which included the review
of the context of incoming and outgoing text messages from 509-552-0072 and
sent, received, and saved emails from accounts believed to be used by Joseph
Brice, I believe that text-messages were drafted and sent by Joseph Brice.
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shipping price so you know a total cost. If you buy more it will b
cheaper for sure thanks matt" [the investigation showed that Brice
was obtaining explosives precursor chemicals, and offered Matt
additional compensation to avoid Law Enforcement notification of
the transaction].
e.

January 22,2010, from 509-552-0072 to 443-324-6122, "One bulk 20
lbs. Let me know price and ill ship"

f.

January 25,2010, from 509-552-0072 t0208-791-0455, "Alright
dude sent that package and I have track so yea need blast cap"

g.

January 26,2010, from 509-552-0072 to 208-791-0455, "Do you
have any diesel supplies still? Measurements or containers?"

h.

February 15, 2010, from 509-552-0072 to 208-413-3411, "AI qaeda
claims they have a new explosive and more powerful that cant be
traced by security."

1.

March 15,2010, from 509-552-0072 to 208-413-3411, "Big enough
to redeem myself. Destroyed barrel and threw it up to railroad
tracks."

J.

March 25,2010, from 509-552-0072 to 208-413-3411, "I fucked up
my eyes filtering that. You should see them."
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k.

March 26,2010, from 509-552-0072 to 208-413-3411, "What time
you be there? 1m doing explosives testing and im very pleased with
my new blasting caps."

1.

March 15,2010, from 509-552-0072 to 208-791-0455, "Would you
buy acetone and ill get a ton ofh202 peroxide"

m.

April 12, 2010, from 509-552-0072 to 208-305-3691, "I can det anfo
now. Did 2 lbs Sunday. Search rzaforshiza youtube. Two videos.
Both were uncontained but made craters. One is booster apan. Other
is anfo." [Based on his training and experience, SABT McEuen
knows that "det" is used as slang for detonate, "ANFO" is an acronym
for Ammonium Nitrate Fuel Oil, an explosive; and "APAN" is an
acronym for Acetone Peroxide Ammonium Nitrate, an improvised
explosive. Significantly, this text message was created six days prior
to the Brice's detonation of the previously described lED comprised
ofTATP/APAN/ANFO on April 18, 2010].

n.

June 4, 2010, from 509-552-0072 to 208-413-3411, "Should I just tell
that cop the truth? Like tell him I used AP cap?"

o.

June 28, 2010, from 509-552-0072 to 208-305-3691, "...That bomb
was massive though. Launched me like ten feet and I have crazy
scars."
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p.

November 10,2010, between 509-552-0072 to 208-305-4691 the
following text messages were sent from 509-552-0072: 12
"I have a really good idea to make a lot of money"
"Rent a moving truck find a fed ex truck. Gun point make them drive
to a deserted spot. Blindfoldd load up as much we can carry. Take
truck to storage and sift"
"Sell clothes electronics on ebay. Could get a business truck that
drops off expensive shit"
"Ya maybe that way the company pays the losses instead of hurting
an individual. The trucks are automatic so we can easily drive it
ourselves with the bitch in the bak."

51.

On February 4,2011, FBI obtained a search warrant of the Microsoft

Corporation for the account information and content ofjoey_brice@hotmail.com.
Microsoft responded on February 18,2011. In accordance with the U.S.
Magistrate Court's instructions, a second warrant was requested when indicia of
additional criminal activity was noted. This additional warrant was authorized on
March 11, 2011. The following registration information was received: login,
Joey_brice@hotmail.com, registration date March 10, 2002, X-box subscription

I have reviewed the responses and have determined that the responses are
consistent to the on-going text-messaging conversation.
12
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information, joey brice (509) 758-1971 1748 Westwood Dr., Clarkston, WA.
The following e-mails were noted in the saved folder of the account:
a.

December 11,2009, from Joe Unknown <joey_brice@hotmail.com>
to mujahid_e_islam@yahoo.com Subject: RE: JUnknown, where did
you go? "No account activation..still pending" in response to a
message from mujahid_e_islam@yahoo.com's message, "Hey
JUnknown, I noticed you registered on http://jihad.freeforums.org/
but never made a post. If you have any problems or questions please
let me know, we would love to see you around the forum."

b.

April 12, 2010, from Joe Unknown <joey_brice@hotmail.com>to
brady_zachow@hotmail.com, Subject zion job, File Attachment
"Zion Job". The attachment described in detail and with annotated
photographs how Brice and Zachow would rob the Zion Bank
including, "I suggest reporting a bomb threat and make real
explosives although there won't be an active trigger detonator.
Unconnected wires will be fine. We will leave the container on
school property preferably in the mid orchards as to not have the
downtown cops remain while getting the orchards police to also go to
the bomb threat scene." ... "I will need your rifle support though
because if someone makes a grab for my gun while getting the money
out of drawers we will have to kill someone." ... "I suggest we do it on
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the 30th, most people get paid on the 15th/30th of the month. April
30th is a Friday so there will be a lot of cash coming in." [April 18th
was the day Brice was injured by his lED.]
c.

June 7, 2010, from Joe Unknown <joey_brice@hotmail.com> to
<schell_tom@yahoo.com, "The explosive was about 8 lbs of fertilizer
mixed with aluminum. The charge that detonates the fertilizer was
sparked early and went off as I was jogging away.. J had it on video
but my·girlfriend deleted cause she was scared."

d.

November 30,2010, from The YNC forum to Joe Unknown
<joey_brice@hotmail.com> regarding a private message from
Binyamine, entitled "RE: forum?" to joey_brice@hotmail.com, "I
don't know. But try your luck at www.Ansar1.info... [I reviewed the
suggested website and saw that it was titled Ansar Al-Mujahideen,
"For all video's, audio's and images related to jihad and the
mujahideen."]

e.

April 4, 2010, from Youtube to Joe Unknown
<joey_brice@hotmail.com> regarding a private message from
NitroFis, "Re: AP AN question. I always grind my AN before using it
inAPAN."

f.

March 20,2010, From YouTube to Joe Unknown
<joey_brice@hotmail.com> regarding a private message from
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grass709, in response to Brice's comment on 40 lb. tannerite: "And
also, API AN(acetone peroxidel ammonium nitrate) mixed in a
stoichiometric ratio of 12/88 is sensitive to a 1 gram AP cap. AP/AN
is powerful enough to detonate ANFO."
52.

On January 31,2011, FBI Special Agent (SA) Katherine McLaughlin and I

searched the area outside Clarkston, WA along State Highway 193. This area was
the crime scene at which Brice detonated the IED during April 2010. There is a
pull-off for one or two vehicles on the south side of the area. South of the railroad
tracks is what appeared to be a dirt road extending south from the railroad tracks
to the river. Prior to the intersection of a road and the river, the investigators
observed a dirt embankment acting as a backstop. Between the railroad tracks and
the beginning of the dirt road, the agents observed old wooden posts that held
barbed wire. These wood posts, dirt road, debris, river and hills on the far side of
the river all matched the scene depicted in the videos posted by Brice on the
StrengthofAllah YouTube channel videos of APAN explosions, as well as the
Joseph Brice explosion scene photographs from the Whitman County explosion
report.
53.

This area contained spent bullet casings and a few live rounds, consistent

with the area being used as an informal firing range. The area also contained tom
pieces of plastic debris and craters consistent with the use of both high and low
explosives. A bent and twisted metal pipe and matching end cap pieces were
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located, consistent with use as a pipe bomb component. Other items and debris,
consistent with the use of improvised explosives, were also located and seized.
54.

During the week of February 8-12, 2011, FBI Special Agent (SA) Joseph D.

Gonzalez II saw Brice at 538 Riverview Blvd. #3, Clarkston, WA. The
residence had been divided into four apartments. Brice spent the night at least two
times during the week in the apartment located at the lower unit on the north side,
bluish grey in color with light colored entrance off Riverview. As viewed from
the rear of the apartment building, Brice's residence is the lower left apartment; as
viewed from the front of the building, it is the lower right. SA Gonzalez also saw
Brice at the residence at 1748 Westwood Dr., Clarkston, WA, a single family
residence located at the comer of Westwood and Shaun Drive on the southwest
comer, with tan siding. SA Gonzalez viewed the attached subject property
photographs and confirmed they were the residences in which he observed Brice.
55.

On February 13,2011, Brice contacted the Clarkston Police Department and

provided information for incident report #11P00765, in which he reported his
residence as 538 Riverview Blvd., Clarkston, WA 99403 (no apartment number
included) and his telephone number as (509) 758-1971 and cellular telephone
number as (509) 552-0072. In the incident report, as written by Sergeant Coombs,
Brice reported finding a GPS tracker on his dark green Jeep. Brice advised that
investigators may believe him to be a suspect in the bomb found in Spokane,
Washington, during the Martin Luther King day march. During this interview,
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Brice advised he was injured last year in an explosion when he detonated some
Tannerite.
56.

On February 22,2011, a billing statement from Cable One was delivered to

538 Riverview Blvd. #3, Clarkston, WA 99403, in the name of Joe Brice. On
Februaryll, 2011, Joe Brice was observed driving a dark green Jeep, bearing

Washington license plate 507ZGZ, (no registration on file). That same vehicle is
seen in attachment A, parked in front of the garage with the #3 affixed on it, in the
rear of 538 Riverview Blvd. #3, Clarkston, Washington 99403.
57.

A subpoena was served on Qwest for the registration information of

509-758-1971. Qwest responded that is was registered to Jeffery S. Brice and
physically located at 1748 Westwood Dr., Clarkston, WA.
58.

A check of Joseph Brice's Washington driver's license showed his residence

as 1748 Westwood Dr., Clarkston, WA. It was last updated October 4,2010. A
commercial credit report on January 18,2011, showed Joseph Brice's address as

1748 Westwood Dr., Clarkston, WA as of November 12,2010.
59.

Among others Brice family members, Joseph Brice and Valley Dental

Laboratory received mail at 1748 Westwood Dr., Clarkston, Washington from
February 3, 2011, to April 20, 2011.
60.

The only addressees to receive mail at 538 Riverview Blvd. #3, Clarkston,

Washington, from February 17,2011, to April 20, 2011, were Joe Brice and

Affidavit of Leland C. McEuen
45 of 57
PI0505RC.RSE.wpd

http://www.intelwire.com

INTELWIRE.com

Joseph Brice. Cable One statements addressed to Joe Brice and Avista Utility bills
addresses to Joseph Brice were received during this period.
61.

On March 29,2011, Inland Northwest Joint Terrorism (INJTTF) Task

Force Officer (TFO) JC Collins interviewed Joseph Brice at 1748 Westwood Dr.,

Clarkston, W A. Brice told TFO Collins that he was injured by the premature
explosion of an improvised explosive device which he manufactured. Brice
explained he made a blasting cap by using a small cylindrical tube that he filled
with "TATP" (Triacetone Triperoxide) explosives which he manufactured. Upon
filling the cap, Brice then inserted a !pric.--e of cannon fuse into the end of the cap.
\..~

Brice then placed the cap with the fuse into an emptied cardboard cylindrical salt
container that he had filled with "APAN" (Acetone Peroxide Ammonium Nitrate)
explosives which he also made. Brice then wrapped the salt container with gallon
bags of ammonium nitrate explosives that he made. Brice stated he made the
ammonium nitrate explosives by mixing ammonium nitrate and aluminum powder
(thereby creating ANAL explosives). Brice stated the entire device was detonated
by lighting the cannon fuse. Brice believed the premature explosion was caused
by fuse sparks landing on TATP residue that remained on the outside of the TA TP
blasting cap.
62.

On April 28, 2011, I reviewed a live feed from surveillance cameras of 1748

Westwood Dr., Clarkston, Washington, and 538 Riverview Blvd. #3,
Clarkston, Washington. I observed a truck registered to Brice's father. Brice
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though, has been observed by FBI surveillance agents driving this vehicle. I saw
both a dark green Jeep vehicle, which is used by Joseph Brice as his primary
vehicle, and Alyssa Pittman's VW Golf, both parked at 538 Riverview Blvd. #3,

Clarkston, Washington.
63.

On May 3, 2011, I called the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco Firearms and

Explosives office in Spokane, and spoke with Ruth Willis. Willis ran a National
Firearms Registration and Transfer Records computer check for registration,
permits, manufacturing license and applications for a destructive device in the
name of Joseph Brice, with and without his birth date, within the state of
Washington. Joseph Brice, in the state of Washington, had never applied for or
received a license to manufacture, possess or use a destructive device.
64.

On May 3,2011, the Grand Jury for the U.S. District Court for the Eastern

\

\

District of Washington, returned a single count Indictment charging Joseph Jeffrey

\'

Brice with Making an Unregistered Firearm (Destructive Device), in violation of

\

26 U.S.C. § 5861(t). See ll-CR-00075-LRS (filed under Seal).
ITEMS TO BE SEIZED, SEARCHED AND EXAMINED
65 .

Your affiant believes, based on his training and experience, that the
-~------~----

-_. -

~-~

-

--- --- -----~-

following records, documents. and items th~t~~onstifuteev'idence, contraband,
fruits, and/or instrumentalities of violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 2332a(a), (c)(2)(A),
l038(a) and/or 26 U.S.C. § 5861(d), (t), may be found at the SUBJECT
PREMISES.
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a.

Any computer, computer system and related peripherals, tapes,
cassettes, cartridges, streaming tape, commercial software and
hardware, computer disks, disk drives, monitors, computer printers,
modems, tape drives, disk application programs, data disks, system
disk operating systems, magnetic media floppy disks, hardware and
software operating manuals, tape systems and hard drive and other
computer-related operation equipment, digital cameras, scanners,
computer photographs, graphic interchange formats and/or
photographs, undeveloped photographic film, slides, and other visual
depictions of such Graphic Interchange formats (including, but not
limited to, JPG, GIF, TIP, AVI, and MPEG), and any electronic data
storage devices including, but not limited to, hardware, software,
diskettes, backup tapes, CD-ROM's,

b.

DVD's, flash memory devices, and other storage mediums; any
input/output peripheral devices, including but not limited to
passwords, data security devices and related documentation, and any
hardware/software manuals related to or used to visually depict,
describe the process of manufacturing destructive devices, or instruct
/ encourage the manufacturing, use of, possession or threatened use
an unregistered destructive device.
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c.

Books and magazines containing visual depictions, explosive recipes
or the construction or use of concerning violations of the
manufacture, use, possession or threatened use an unregistered
destructive device.

d.

Originals, copies, and negatives of visual depictions of the use,
possession or threaten to use an unregistered destructive device.

e.

Motion pictures, films, videos, and other recordings of visual
depictions of the manufacture, use, possession or threaten to use an
unregistered destructive device.

f.

Information, electronic records, or correspondence pertaining to the
possession, receipt, or distribution of explosives and/or destructive
devices that were transmitted or received using computer, some other
facility or means of interstate or foreign commerce, common carrier,
or the U.S. mail including, but not limited to:
1.

Registries regarding file-sharing software communications and
participants in file-sharing Internet networks;

11.

Envelopes, letters, and other correspondence including, but not
limited to electronic mail, chat logs, and electronic messages,
establishing possession, access to, or transmission through
interstate or foreign commerce, including by United States mail
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or by computer, of the manufacture, use, possession or
threatened use of an unregistered destructive device;
111.

Books, ledgers, and records bearing on the production,
reproduction, receipt, shipment, orders, requests, trades,
purchases, or transactions of any kind involving the
transmission through interstate or foreign commerce including
by United States mail or by computer of any manufacture, use,
possession or threatened use of an unregistered destructive
device;

IV.

Chat logs, e-mails, text messages, Internet accessed
forums/channels/websites posts, evidencing the discussion,
transfer or desire for, availability of, or willingness to
manufacture, trade, use, possess or threaten to use, an
unregistered destructive device, including the communicators'
screen names, IP address, e-mail address, contact information
and buddy/friends lists;

v.

Accounts and postings associated with the e-mail addresses
joeybrice55@gmail.com, joey_brice@hotmail.com,
rzaforshiza@gmail.com, rzaforshiz@yahoo.com,
stengthofallah@gmail.com and slight variations thereof;
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VI.

Accounts and postings associated with the YouTube channels,
StrengthofAllah, Newspeakgeneration, Chsloosers,
Rzaforshiza, TheRzaforshiza;

VlI.

Accounts and postings associated with The Young News
Channel and the screen name Joey "Super Moderator";

vln.

Screen names and passwords for access to computers and
encrypted sections thereof;

lX.

Credit card information including but not limited to bills and
payment records;

g.

Records evidencing occupancy or ownership of the SUBJECT
PREMISES, including, but not limited to, utility and telephone bills,
mail envelopes, or addressed correspondence;

h.

Records or other items that indicate ownership or use of computer
equipment, including, but not limited to, sales receipts, bills for
Internet access and handwritten notes;

1.

Double threaded metal pipes and end caps;

J.

Energetic materials (Explosives); including high explosives such as
dynamite, RDX based explosives, PETN, detonation cord, black
powder, smokeless powder, and Tannerite;

k.

Improvised explosives; including TATP, APAN, ANAL (ammonium
nitrate aluminum powder) and ANFO;
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1.

Precursor chemicals to make explosives, including oxidizers (such as
ammonium nitrate, hydrogen peroxide, potassium chlorate, sodium
chlorate) and fuels (such as acetone, diesel fuel, nitromethane, metal
powders, hexamine tablets, glycerin, icing sugar, sugar substitutes,
strong acids (such as hydrochloric acid, nitric acid, sulphuric acid,
and their common household forms, such as concrete
cleaner/bleacher, drain cleaner, swimming pool additives), and
stabilizers such as pH neutralizing bases such as baking soda;

n.

Improvised explosive manufacturing tools; including small tubes,
cardboard tubes (such as former salt containers), buckets, filters,
funnels, sieves, mixing bowls, jars, items with chemical burns, work
areas with bums and chemical burns, mixing bowls and utensils with
explosive (energetic material) residue, scales, measuring spoons, pH
test strips, ice baths, heaters;

o.

Images of explosively caused injuries; including burns, chemical
bums, explosive caused scars and wounds;

p.

Time Power Units (TPU) parts; including, timing pieces, printed and
non-printed circuit boards, soldering iron, solder, wire connectors,
wires for conducting electricity, batteries, loads (nichrome wire,
hobby rocket igniters, flash bulbs, broken bulbs ), sparklers,
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transistors, SCR transistors, relays, ammunition primers, wire cutters,
pliers, hammers, screw drivers, crimpers;
q.

Improvised Explosives Device (lED) initiators; including switches,
modified timers, micro-switches, contact switches, motion detectors,
passive infrared sensors, wire loops, pressure activated switches
(positive and negative pressure), wireless transmitters and receivers
(modified garage door opener receiver / transmitter systems), fuses
(canon time fuse, military time fuse, improvised time fuse), Predator
firework initiating system, non-electric primary explosive initiator
devices (NPED);

r.

Shrapnel; including metal pieces, nuts, bolts, nails, ball bearings, bb's;

s.

Indicia of identification; including driver's license, state issued
identification cards, social security account cards, employment
identification cards, passport, address book, credit card receipts, rent
receipts, rent contracts, photographs, fingerprints (including from the
person of Joseph Brice), items containing DNA (including from the
person of Joseph Brice), hairs (various body hairs from throughout
the body (including from the person of Joseph Brice);

1.

Trace evidence; including carpet and cloth fibers, trace minerals,
soils, explosives residue, explosives precursor chemical residue and
tool marks. I know based on my training and experience that trace
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evidence such as the fibers in a car (carpet, seat cushion, dash felt)
will exist unless changed, for many years. Additionally, trace
amounts of explosives residue and/or chemical precursors will remain
in those fibers, even if the car is cleaned;
u.

Telephones; including the telephone assigned the number
509-552-0072 and the telephone assigned the number 208-413-3411;

v.

Information regarding criminal activity for the purpose of advancing
violent acts against the United States or its interests.

EFFORTS TO OBTAIN EVIDENCE IN OTHER JUDICIAL FORUMS
66.

There have been numerous warrants and subpoenas issued during this

investigation. However, the government has not made any other efforts in other
judicial forums to obtain the specific evidence sought in this warrant from the
specified SUBJECT PROPERTY other than what is listed above.
OTHER CRIMINAL CONDUCT
67.

A) In the event that agents examining the digital data and/or digital

information seized in this investigation, discover, in plain view, evidence of
criminal conduct other than that described in this affidavit, the examiner shall not
seize such data and/or information until a supplemental search warrant is obtained
which specifically authorizes the seizure of such data and/or information related to
other crimes, however,
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B) In the prior search warrant results authorized by this court for YouTube,
Google, Inland Cellular and Microsoft, electronic data in Joseph Brice's accounts
reveled other criminal activity to include; illegal drug use, possession and sale,
mail fraud/wire fraud regarding obtaining false identifications, robbery planning,
including bank and commercial carrier robbery, and state crimes regarding
firearms violations, minor in possession of alcohol. These discoveries were
disclosed to the court and additional authorization, as required by the court were
sought and obtained. (See MJ-ll-059, 11-056, 11-031, 11-114, 11-055, 11-030,
11,022, 11-138 and 11-204.) Therefore your Affiant requests that the search
continue if evidence of those crimes are located and those crimes not be
considered "other Criminal Conduct" based on section "a" above.

CONCLUSION
68.

Based on my training and experience, and the facts as set forth in this

affidavit, there is probable cause to believe that there exists evidence of a crime
and contraband or fruits ofa crime at the SUBJECT PROPERTY. Accordingly, a
search warrant is requested.
69.

This court has jurisdiction to issue the requested warrant because it is a

"court of competent jurisdiction" as defined by 18 U.S.C. § 2711, 18 U.S.C. §
2703(a), (b)(I)(A) & (c)(1)(A). Specifically, the Court is a district court of the
United States that has jurisdiction over the offense being investigated.
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66.

Based on the forgoing, there is probable cause to believe that 18 U.S.C. §§

2332a(a), (c)(2)(A), 1038 (a) and/or 26 U.S.C. § 5861(d), (f), which among other
things, make it a federal crime for any person to knowingly manufacture, possess
and/or receive or use a unlicensed destructive device, have been violated, and that
the property, evidence, fruits and instrumentalities of these offenses, more fully
described in Attachment B of this Affidavit, are located at the SUBJECT
PREMISES, as more fully described in Attachment A.

REQUEST FOR SEALING
70.

It is respectfully requested that this Court issue an order sealing, until

further order of the Court, all papers submitted in support of this application,
including the application and search warrant. I believe that sealing this document
is necessary because the items and information to be seized are relevant to an
ongoing investigation into the criminal organization, and as not yet all the targets
of this investigation will be search at this time. Based on my training and
experience, I have learned that, online criminals actively search for criminal
affidavits and search warrants via the Internet, and disseminate them to other
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online criminals as the deem appropriate, i.e., post them publicly online through
forums. Premature disclosure of the contents of this affidavit and related
documents may have a significant and negative impact on the continuing
investigation and may severely jeopardize its effectiveness.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this

//;4
(r1

day of May, 2011.

///"
I,

_./~.

"

Cynthia Imbrogno
United States Magistrate Judge
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Attachment A
"SUBJECT PROPERTY"

538 Riverview Blvd. #3, Clarkston, WA, further described as quadplex
apartments, two above and two below. The unit to be searched is the lower unit on
the north side of structure, bluish grey in color with light colored entrance off
Riverview. The number 3 is affixed to the right post of the entryway. And all
trash receptacles and outbuildings assigned to the residence, including the
detached garage with a corresponding apartment number 3 attached.
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Attachment B
"ITEMS TO BE SEARCH FOR and SEIZED"
Items of evidence concerning violations of Title 18 U.S.C. § 2332a(a),
(c)(2)(A), 26 U.S.C. § 5861(d), (f) and 18 U.S.C. § 1038(a), which make it a crime
to use, possess, make, or threaten to use an unregistered destructive device in any
form wherever they may be stored or found including, but not limited to:
a.

Any computer, computer system and related peripherals, tapes,
cassettes, cartridges, streaming tape, commercial software and
hardware, computer disks, disk drives, monitors, computer printers,
modems, tape drives, disk application programs, data disks, system
disk operating systems, magnetic media floppy disks, hardware and
software operating manuals, tape systems and hard drive and other
computer-related operation equipment, digital cameras, scanners,
computer photographs, graphic interchange formats and/or
photographs, undeveloped photographic film, slides, and other visual
depictions of such Graphic Interchange formats (including, but not
limited to, JPG, GIF, TIF, AVI, and :MPEG), and any electronic data
storage devices including, but not limited to, hardware, software,
diskettes, backup tapes, CD-ROM's,
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b.

DVD's, flash memory devices, and other storage mediums; any
input/output peripheral devices, including but not limited to
passwords, data security devices and related documentation, and any
hardware/software manuals related to or used to visually depict,
describe the process of manufacturing destructive devices, or instruct
/ encourage the manufacturing, use of, possession or threatened use
an unregistered destructive device.

c.

Books and magazines containing visual depictions, explosive recipes
or the construction or use of concerning violations of the
manufacture, use, possession or threatened use an unregistered
destructive device.

d.

Originals, copies, and negatives of visual depictions of the use,
possession or threaten to use an unregistered destructive device.

e.

Motion pictures, films, videos, and other recordings of visual
depictions of the manufacture, use, possession or threaten to use an
unregistered destructive device.

f.

Information, electronic records, or correspondence pertaining to the·
possession, receipt, or distribution of explosives and/or destructive
devices that were transmitted or received using computer, some other
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facility or means of interstate or foreign commerce, common carrier,
or the U.S. mail including, but not limited to:
1.

Registries regarding file-sharing software communications and
participants in file-sharing Internet networks;

11.

Envelopes, letters, and other correspondence including, but not
limited to electronic mail, chat logs, and electronic messages,
establishing possession, access to, or transmission through
interstate or foreign commerce, including by United States mail
or by computer, of the manufacture, use, possession or
threatened use of an unregistered destructive device;

111.

Books, ledgers, and records bearing on the production,
reproduction, receipt, shipment, orders, requests, trades,
purchases, or transactions of any kind involving the
transmission through interstate or foreign commerce including
by United States mail or by computer of any manufacture, use,
possession or threatened use of an unregistered destructive
device;

IV.

Chat logs, e-mails, text messages, Internet accessed
forums/channels/websites posts, evidencing the discussion,
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transfer or desire for, availability of, or willingness to
manufacture, trade, use, possess or threaten to use, an
unregistered destructive device, including the communicators'
screen names, IP address, e-mail address, contact information
and buddy/friends lists;
v.

Accounts and postings associated with the e-mail addresses
joeybrice55@gmail.com, joey_brice@hotmail.com,
rzaforshiza@gmail.com, rzaforshiz@yahoo.com,
stengthofallah@gmail.com and slight variations thereof;

VI.

Accounts and postings associated with the YouTube channels,
StrengthofAllah, Newspeakgeneration, Chsloosers,
Rzaforshiza, TheRzaforshiza;

Vll.

Accounts and postings associated with The Young News
Channel and the screen name Joey "Super Moderator";

VIll.

Screen names and passwords for access to computers and
encrypted sections thereof;

IX.

Credit card information including but not limited to bills and
payment records;
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g.

Records evidencing occupancy or ownership of the SUBJECT
PREMISES, including, but not limited to, utility and telephone bills,
mail envelopes, or addressed correspondence;

h.

Records or other items that indicate ownership or use of computer
equipment, including, but not limited to, sales receipts, bills for
Internet access and handwritten notes;

1.

Double threaded metal pipes and end caps;

J.

Energetic materials (Explosives); including high explosives such as
dynamite, RDX based explosives, PETN, detonation cord, black
powder, smokeless powder, and Tannerite;

k.

Improvised explosives; including TATP, APAN, ANAL (ammonium
nitrate aluminum powder) and ANFO;

1.

Precursor chemicals to make explosives, including oxidizers (such as
ammonium nitrate, hydrogen peroxide, potassium cWorate, sodium
chlorate) and fuels (such as acetone, diesel fuel, nitromethane, metal
powders, hexamine tablets, glycerin, icing sugar, sugar substitutes,
strong acids (such as hydrochloric acid, nitric acid, sulphuric acid,
and their common household forms, such as concrete
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cleaner/bleacher, drain cleaner, swimming pool additives), and
stabilizers such as pH neutralizing bases such as baking soda;
n.

.Improvised explosive manufacturing tools; including small tubes,
cardboard tubes (such as former salt containers), buckets, filters,
funnels, sieves, mixing bowls, jars, items with chemical burns, work
areas with burns and chemical burns, mixing bowls and utensils with
explosive (energetic material) residue, scales, measuring spoons, pH
test strips, ice baths, heaters;

o.

Images of explosively caused injuries; including burns, chemical
bums, explosive caused scars and wounds;

p.

Time Power Units (TPU) parts; including, timing pieces, printed and
non-printed circuit boards, soldering iron, solder, wire connectors,
wires for conducting electricity, batteries, loads (nichrome wire,
hobby rocket igniters, flash bulbs, broken bulbs), sparklers,
transistors, SCR transistors, relays, ammunition primers, wire cutters,
pliers, hammers, screw drivers, crimpers;

q.

Improvised Explosives Device (lED) initiators; including switches,
modified timers, micro-switches, contact switches, motion detectors,
passive infrared sensors, wire loops, pressure activated switches
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(positive and negative pressure), wireless transmitters and receivers
(modified garage door opener receiver / transmitter systems), fuses
(canon time fuse, military time fuse, improvised time fuse), Predator
firework initiating system, non-electric primary explosive initiator
devices (NPED);
r.

Shrapnel; including metal pieces, nuts, bolts, nails, ball bearings, bb's;

s.

Indicia of identification; including driver's license, state issued
identification cards, social security account cards, employment
identification cards, passport, address book, credit card receipts, rent
receipts, rent contracts, photographs, fingerprints (including from the
person of Joseph Brice), items containing DNA (including from the
person of Joseph Brice), hairs (various body hairs from throughout
the body (including from the person of Joseph Brice);

t.

Trace evidence; including carpet and cloth fibers, trace minerals,
soils, explosives residue, explosives precursor chemical residue and
tool marks;

u.

Telephones; the telephone assigned the number 509-552-0072 and the
telephone assigned the number 208-413-3411;
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v.

Information regarding criminal activity for the purpose of advancing
violent acts against the United States or its interests.
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